
FILE CO°Y

U\:T£D STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

NATiONAL PARK SERVICE

STATE:

Missouri

FOR NFS USE ONLY

ENTRY DATE

St Louis Air Force Station
a/op HISTORIC. St Louis Arsenal, St Louis Depot, St Louis Barracks 3 

St Louis Clothing Depot,, St Louis Medical Depot_____________

:2. LOCATION

STREET AND NUMBER:

j Second and Arsenal Streets

- Ms. Lenor K. Sullivan

29 St Louis City JM,

CATEGORY 

(Check One)
STATUS

ACCESSIBLE 

TO THE PUBLIC

QBuiidino.

CD Obje

£] Public 

CD Private

Public Acquisition: 

CD In Process

Occupied 

d Unoccupied 

CD Pre.e.votionwork 

in progress

PRESENT USE (Cneck One OF More as Appropriate)

CDAaricu!. u .=! Q Gov.r 

CD Commerce! CD Indus

CD Museum

] Park

] Private Residence

] Religious

CD Transpor 

__ 0*.' (S

U, AecM'CY; "••<<: ..;/

Headquarters, United States Air Force

D.C.
CODE

~ociT

[CO

St Louis City Recorder of Deeds, City Hall

Missouri Historic Sites Catalogue
vay, . 19&3 d F.derol QCoc

Lowry Streets
CODE

29



j

1 
i

aE...,l.n, SCCood D F.,,

(Check Ona) 

HX; Altered Q Unaltered

(Check One) 

n Deteriorated

1

D R U in. D U-..,»..d

fClioci OneJ 

W.ov.d 52fOri S inoI Si to

 j>.e c.raa herein described as a district originally encompassed 

! approximately 37 acres of land which extended between Carondele' 

Ave (now Broadway Street), and the Mississippi River. In 

February 1853, a right of way was granted to the St Louis and 

Iron Mountain Railroad Co across the property totaling approxi- 

| mately two acres. In July 1870, approximately seven acres of 

land fronting on Broadway Street and being bound on the South 

by Utah Street, and on the North by Arsenal Street, was granted 

to the City of St Louis for erection of a monument in memory of 

Brigadier General Nathaniel Lyon. The dedication was completed 

by the Secretary of War in 1874. By permit, January 1882, the 

Corps of Engineers was granted use of approximately six acres 

of ground lying between the railroad track, mentioned above, and 

the river, in connection with river improvement work.

The present reservation, minus above transactions, is the area 

now being offered for consideration, which constitutes approxi 

mately twenty-two acres. Within the confines of this acreage 

are ten buildings with erection dates from 1830 to 1906. These 

buildings are of Federal architecture, and are arranged in such 

a manner that gives an excellent example of the building prac 

tices and a remnant layout of a major arsenal of the early 19th 

Century.

Of particular interest are buildings #4 and #5, which are two of 

the oldest and best preserved buildings on base. Both are con 

structed of limestone walls over stone foundations, and their 

site and architectural integrity has not been altered since they 

were built in the l830's. These buildings are built in the 

Federal style of architecture, which characterizes the majority 

of the other buildings except buildings 20 and 22 which are of 

modified Federal architecture. A further exception to this 

style is evident in building #25, which was constructed in 1906, 

and is believed to be of modified French Colonial architecture. 

It should also be noted that building #1 has lost its architec 

tural integrity through extensive modification, but it was of 

modified Federal architecture before remodeling.

Site alterations have occurred to buildings #12 and #13. Each 

were originally built as three separate buildings in the form 

of a "Cross", but during the early 1920's, the middle building 

was removed, rebuilt, and connected in a straight line with the 

other two buildings. The integrity of the end sections of each 

building was maintained. Also, building #1 had considerable 

architectural alteration in January 1963. The building origin 

ally had three floors, but the second and third floors were 

rer.ovedj and the first floor was rebuilt. Site integrity was 

preserved.

The buildings involved in this district are as follows:
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Collectively, these buildings show construction and engineering 

techniques of military fortifications during the first half of th 

19th Century. This is further enhanced when it is identified with 

one of the major conflicts in American history - the Civil War. 

Also, from establishments such as these-our political and social 

environment and ideology was expanded westward across the 
American continent.

Individually, these buildings are primarily important for the 

particular function for which they were built. It is believed 

building #5 was originally built as an armory, but later modified 

into a guard house. Its appearance has been relatively unaltered, 

for a century. Iron bars are still in place over the windows, 

and the entrance door is of plank-like construction fitted with a| 

latch and clasp device instead of a doorknob. Slit type fortress 

windows are still intact along the north wall. Inside, portions 

of the cell bars that divided the cell area from the reception 

room are still intact. Only the cell door appears to have been 

removed for ease of passage between the two areas.

Building #4, which is immediately adjacent to Building #5, is 

thought to have been the original headquarters building for the 

Arsenal. However, later research has formed the theory that this 

building, along with: Building #5, was a part of a larger armory 

building which probably was never built.

Buildings #2 and #7 are also of individual interest and curoslty. 

Because of their structure and relative position in the arsenal 

district;, it is believed their original use was for gun carriage j 

housing and repair. The large door openings in these buildings, j 

particularly building #2, gives further evidence to this type of 

usage. ]
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; has been ..one to change the facade of the buildings, and 

interior modifications have been made only to keep them function 

al for current day use.

It should also be noted there is on the parade grounds of this 

site a very fine sundial, made and emplaced in 1859. This dial 

is 'probably one of the few remaining examples of this type of 

art. An article was written about this, sundial entitled "Sun 

dials ", by Terry B. Morton, and was published in the Historic 

Preservation magazine in 1961, Vol 13, Issue No 1, Pgs 30-34.
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The installation of an arsenal in this area probably was first 

conceived by the US War Department about 1809, shortly after the 

Louisiana Purchase of 1803. Land for this purpose was acquired 

in 1827 3 and shortly thereafter construction of buildings began. 

The arsenal grew in importance over the next 30 years, and 

reached its peak in the l860's during the Civil War when it be 

came a principal supplier of ordnance to Federal troops in the 

Mississippi Valley theater. In 1871 when the ordnance function 

of the Arsenal was transferred to Jefferson Barracks Army Post, 

the functional aspects of the area diminished, but its histori 

cal signifance, and the influence it exerted upon the opening of 

the Western frontier remained.

Its importance as a significant military installation in the 

Mississippi Valley during the Civil War, and the ordnance 

function it maintained to supply such historic events as the 

Black Kawk War and the Mexican War during the early half of the 

19th Century is considered to be the Arsenal's greatest point of 

significance. Secondary to this only would be the preservation 

of military fortification engineering techniques, and the Federal 

style of architecture, which is still intact on the base.

In conjunction with its role as a major ordnance depot, several 

important personages of the time were identified with the Arsenal 

  those being Ulysses S. Grant, William T. Sherman^ Nathaniel 

Lyon, William Beaumont, John C. Fremont, and Francis P. Blair.

With regard to the above, in conjunction with EO 11593, it 

appears that the area is of considerable historical value, both 

regionally and nationally.
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